
FINANCIAL INDUSTRY REGULATORY AUTHORITY ("FINRA") 
NOTICE OF ACCEPTANCE OF OFFER OF SETTLEMENT 

Certified Mail, Return Receipt Requested: 7014 3490 0001 9240 3650 

TO: 
	

Nancy Hendrickson 
Counsel for Respondent: Thomas Lawrence (CRD: 1839619) 
Kaufman Dolowich & Voluck, LLP 
135 South LaSalle Street, Suite 2100 
Chicago, IL 60603 

FROM: 	FINRA, Kansas City District Office 
120 W. 12th  St, Suite 800 
Kansas City, MO 64105 

DATE: 	September 22, 2017 

RE: 	Offer of Settlement in Disciplinary Proceeding No. 2016051945101 

Please be advised that the Offer of Settlement you submitted in the above-referenced matter has 
been accepted by FINRA's National Adjudicatory Council (NAC) Review Subcommittee, or by 
the Office of Disciplinary Affairs on behalf of the NAC, pursuant to FINRA Rule 9270. 
Enclosed is the Order accepting your clients Offer of Settlement. 

You are again reminded of your clients obligation, if currently registered, to update immediately 
their Form U4 (Uniform Application for Securities Industry Registration or Transfer) to reflect 
the conclusion of this disciplinary action. Additionally, your client must also notify FINRA in 
writing of any change of address or other changes required to be made to their Form U4. 

You will be notified by the Registration and Disclosure Department regarding sanctions and by 
the Finance Department regarding the payment of any fine. 

If you have any questions conceming this matter, please call me at (816) 802-4710. 

4a6:;:6  
J. LòyðGftis III 
Principal Regional Counsel 

Enclosure 



FINANCIAL INDUSTRY REGULATORY AUTHORITY 
OFFICE OF HEARING OFFICERS 

Disciplinary Proceeding No. 2016051945101 

Hearing Officer DRS 

ORDER ACCEPTING OFFER OF  
SETTLEMENT 

Date: September 22, 2017 

DEPARTMENT OF ENFORCEMENT, 

Complainant, 

v. 

THOMAS LAWRENCE (CRD No. 1839619), 

Respondent. 

INTRODUCTION 

Disciplinary Proceeding No. 2016051945101 was filed on July 27, 2017 by the 

Department of Enforcement of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority ("FINRA") 

(Complainanr). Respondent Thomas Lawrence (Respondent") submitted an Offer of 

Settlement ("Offer") to Complainant dated September 18, 2017. Pursuant to FINRA Rule 

9270(e), the Complainant and the National Adjudicatory Council ("NAC"), a Review 

Subcommittee of the NAC, or the Office of Disciplinary Affairs (ODA") have accepted the 

uncontested Offer. Accordingly, this Order now is issued pursuant to FINRA Rule 9270(e)(3). 

The findings, conclusions and sanctions set forth in this Order are those stated in the Offer as 

accepted by the Complainant and approved by the NAC. 

Under the terms of the Offer, Respondent has consented, without admitting or denying 

the allegations of the Complaint, and solely for the purposes of this proceeding and any other 

proceeding brought by or on behalf of FINRA, or to which FINRA is a party, to the entry of 

findings and violations consistent with the allegations of the Complaint, and to the imposition of 

the sanctions set forth below, and fully understands that this Order will become part of 



Respondent's permanent disciplinary record and may be considered in any future actions brought 

by FINRA. 

BACKGROUND 

Lawrence was registered with FINRA or its predecessor as a general securities 

representative from 1989 to 2016. After associating with three other broker-dealers from 1989 to 

2006, Lawrence associated with Ameritas Investment Corp. (CRD No. 14869) from June 30, 

2006 to December 27, 2016. Lawrence has not been registered with FINRA or associated with 

any member of FINRA since December 27, 2016. Although Lawrence is no longer registered 

with FINRA or associated with any of its rnembers, he is subject to FINRA's jurisdiction in this 

disciplinary proceeding under Article V, Section 4 of FINRA's by-laws because FINRA filed 

this complaint within two years after the termination of his registration with FINRA and the 

conduct at issue occurred while he was registered with FINRA. 

FINDINGS AND CONCLUSIONS 

It has been determined that the Offer be accepted and that findings be made as follows: 

1. Around 2002, Lawrence's wife at that time introduced him to Customer, who was 

approximately eighty-five years old, and they became friends. 

2. By 2007, Customer became Lawrence's securities customer. Customer continued 

to be Lawrence's securities customer until at least May 2015. 

3. In November 2013, when Customer was approximately ninety-six years old, 

Lawrence and his wife asked Customer for a loan of $39,364.43 to help them pay their taxes. 

4. Lawrence and his wife asked Customer for the loan instead of seeking another 

source of financing because they were friends. 
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5. Customer agreed to provide the loan. On November 30, 2013, at Lawrence's 

request, Customer wrote a check for $39,364.43 to the United States Treasury, indicating that the 

check was for Lawrence's 2012 taxes. 

6. On December 1, 2013, Lawrence drafted and signed a promissory note stating in 

part that he and his wife "owe ... [Customer] $49,364.43 principal with interest at a rate of 5% 

per annum payable in twelve months". 

7. Lawrence helped work out the promissory note s terms. 

8. The promissory note reflected Customer's loan of $39,364.43 to Lawrence and 

his wife, plus another loan of $10,000 that Lawrence's wife obtained from Customer in 2009. 

9. Lawrence did not repay any portion of Customer's loan. 

10. Lawrence never had any discussion with Customer about repaying his loan, and 

has not spoken to him since early 2014. 

11. When Lawrence borrowed from Customer, Ameritas prohibited associated 

persons from borrowing from customers, except for immediate family members—and then only 

with the firm's prior written approval. 

12. Lawrence did not notify Ameritas about Customer's loan before obtaining it. 

13. Ameritas never approved Lawrences loan from Customer. 

14. Five times before Lawrence borrowed from Customer—including less than three 

months before the loan—Lawrence acknowledged to Ameritas that he was not allowed to solicit 

or accept a loan from a client for any reason. 

15. Lawrence continued to acknowledge Ameritas's policy against borrowing from 

customers after he obtained Customer's loan, including in August 2014. 
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16. 	When Lawrence borrowed from Customer, Customer was not a member of 

Lawrence's immediate family, a person who regularly arranged or extended credit in the 

ordinary course of business, a registered person who associated with Ameritas, or in a business 

relationship with Lawrence outside of their broker-customer relationship. 

Based on the foregoing, Respondent violated F1NRA Rule 3240 and consequently 

FINRA Rule 2010. 

Based on these considerations, the sanctions hereby imposed by the acceptance of the 

Offer are in the public interest, are sufficiently remedial to deter Respondent from any future 

misconduct, and represent a proper discharge by FINRA, of its regulatory responsibility under 

the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. 

SANCTIONS 

It is ordered that Respondent be sanctioned as follows: 

Suspension in all capacities of 24 months 
Fine of $5,000 
Restitution of $41,332.65 plus interest, as described below 

The fine imposed in this matter shall be due and payable either immediately upon re-

association with a member firm, or prior to any application or request for relief from any 

statutory disqualification resulting from this or any other event or proceeding, whichever is 

earlier. 

Respondent is ordered to pay restitution to the customer listed in Attachment A of 

$41,332.65 plus interest at the rate set forth in Section 6621(a)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code, 

26 U.S.C. § 6621(a)(2), from December 1, 2014 until the date of payment. Restitution amounts 

ordered pursuant to this disciplinary action are due and payable immediately upon re-association 

with a member firm, or prior to any application or request for relief from any statutory 
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disqualification resulting from this or any other event or proceeding, whichever is earlier. The 

imposition of a restitution order or any other monetary sanction in this Order, and the timing of 

such ordered payments, does not preclude customers from pursuing their own actions to obtain 

restitution or other remedies. If for any reason Respondent cannot locate the customer listed in 

Attachment A after reasonable and documented efforts by such time, or within such additional 

time agreed to by a FINRA staff member in writing, Respondent shall forward any undistributed 

restitution and interest to the appropriate escheat, unclaimed property, or abandoned property 

fund for the state in which the customer is last known to have resided. 

The sanctions imposed in this Order shall be effective on a date set by FINRA staff. 

SO ORDERED. 

FINRA 

Signed on behalf of the 
Director of ODA, by delegated authority 

44A-) 

 

 

J. Loyd Gttis III 
Principal Regional Counsel 
FINRA Department of Enforcement 
120 West 12th Street 
Kansas City, Missouri 64105 
8 16-802-47 10 (telephone) 
816-421-4519 (facsimile) 
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CLI 
Lo ame Page, Paralega 
FINRA Department of Enforcement 
120 W. 12th  St, Ste 800 
Kansas City, MO 64105 
(816) 802-4715 

FINANCIAL INDUSTRY REGULATORY AUTHORITY 

OFFICE OF HEARING OFFICERS 

Department of Enforcement, 

Complainant, 

v. 

Thomas Lawrence 
(CRD No. 1839619), 

Respondent. 

Disciplinary Proceeding 
No. 2016051945101 

Date: September 22, 2017 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify that on this 22nd day of September 2017, I caused a PDF copy of the 
foregoing Notice of Acceptance of Offer of Settlement and Order Accepting Offer of Settlement 
to be sent by electronic mail to: 

OHOcasefilings, tginra.org  

I also caused a copy to be sent by electronic mail and Certified Mail to: 

Nancy Hendrickson 
Counsel for Respondent 
Kaufman Dolowich & Voluck, LLP 
135 South LaSalle Street, Suite 2100 
Chicago, IL 60603 
nhendrickson'kvdlaw.com  
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